1. 우리도의 연혁

우리도는 삼한(三韓)시대에 마한의 북변지로서, 당시 마한의 중심지이며 삼한의 정치적 주도 권을 쥐고 있었던 월지국(月支國)도 우리도에 위치해 있었던 것으로 추정된다.

삼국시대에는 백제에 의해 마한이 정복되자 백제의 영토로 편입되었으며, 백제는 문주왕 2년(475년)에 수도를 한성(서울)에서 웅진(공주)으로 옮겼고 성왕 16년(538년)에 사비(부여)로 천도 하여 의자왕 20년(660년) 나・당 연합군에 의해 멸망할 때까지 122년간 화려한 사비시대의 문화를 창달했다.

삼국통일을 이룩한 신라 무열왕 7년(660년) 본도에는 웅진도독부가 설치되었고, 문무왕 11년(671년)에 소부리주(사비주)로 개편되었다가 신문왕 6년(686년)에 웅천주로 개칭되었으며, 경덕왕 16년(757년)에 웅주로 변경되었다.

신라말에 후삼국이 분립하자 우리도는 견훤(甄萱)이 세운 후백제의 영역에 속했으나, 고려가 후삼국을 통일한 후, 성종 2년(983년)에 12목제를 실시하여 본도에는 공주목이 설치되었다. 성종 14년(995년) 10도제로 개편하여 웅주(공주), 운주(홍성) 등 주현으로 이루어진하남도(河南道)가 설치되었고, 1106년 10도 가운데 관내도·충원도·하남도의 3도가 합하여양광충청주도가 이루어졌으며, 명종 원년(1171년) 양광주도와 충청주도 두 개로 분리되었다가 1314년 충청주도가 다시 양광도로 환원되었다. 공민왕 5년(1356년)에 또 충청도로 변경하였고, 고려말기에는 양광충청주도를 줄여서 양광도 또는 충청도로 병용한 것으로 보여진다.

조선초기 태조 4년(1396년)에는 양광도를 경기도와 충청도로 분리하였고, 연산군 11년 (1505년) 충청도를 충공도로, 명종 4년(1549년) 청홍도로 개칭하였으며, 선조 31년(1598년)에는 감영을 충주에서 공주로 이전하였다. 이후 충청도의 명칭은 공청도, 충청도, 공홍도, 중홍도, 공충도 등으로 수차에 걸쳐 개칭되었으나 순조 34년(1834년)에 이르러 공청도에서 충청도로 환원되었다.

고종 33년(1896년 8월 4일) 칙령 제36호로 전국을 8도제에서 13도제로 개편, 충청도가 남북으로 분리되어 충청남도(37군)가 탄생하였다.

1. 우리도의 연혁

1932년 10월에는 공주에 있던 도청을 대전으로 이전하였으며, 1935년에는 대전읍이 대전부로 승격하고, 대전군의 잔여지역이 대덕군으로 설치되었다.

1963년에는 행정구역 개편에 따라 전북 익산군의 황화면과 논산군 구자곡면의 일부 마을을 폐합하여 연무읍이 설치되고, 보령군 대천면과 당진군 당진면이 읍으로 승격되었으며, 같은 해 천안군 천안읍과 환성면을 폐합하여 천안시가 설치되었고 천안시를 제외한 잔여지역으로 천원군을 설치하였으며, 전라북도의 금산군이 충남에 편입되었다.

1986년에는 공주군 공주읍, 보령군 대천읍, 아산군 온양읍이 각각 시로 승격되고, 1989년에는 법률 제4049호(1988.12.31공포)로 대전시 및 대덕군을 통합대전직할시로 승격시켰다. 이때 대덕군은 폐지되고 대덕군 진잠면 남선리는 논산군 두마면에 편입되었으며, 법률 제4050호(1988. 12.31공포)로 서산군의 서산읍이 서산시로 승격되고, 태안읍, 안면읍, 고남면, 남면, 근흥면, 소원면, 원북면, 이원면 일원이 태안군으로 분리 설치되었다.

1995년도에는 지방자치시대를 앞두고 대대적인 행정구역 개편이 이루어져 천안시와 천안군을 천안시로, 공주시와 공주군을 공주시로, 대천시와 보령군을 보령시로, 온양시와 아산군을 아산시로, 서산시와 서산군을 서산시로 통합하여 도농복합형태의 시로 새롭게 개편되었으며, 1996년 3월 1일에 논산군이 논산시로 승격되고, 2003년에는 법률 제 6,929호에 의거 계룡출장소가 계룡시로 승격(2면, 1동)되었고 2007년 12월 천안시 일반구(동남구, 서북구) 설치가 승인되어 2008년 7월 개청되었으며, 아산시 배방면과 당진군 송악면은 인구증가 및 읍설치 법적요건 충족에 따라 각각 2009년 5월과 2010년 1월에 읍으로 승격되었다.

2012년에는 급속한 인구증가에 따라 당진군이 당진시로 승격되고(2012.1.1.) 7월 1일에는 세종특별자치시 출범으로 인해 연기군 전역과 공주시 장기면·의당면·반포면의 21개리가 세종시로 편입되었으며, 2013년 10월 14일에는 천안시 백석동이 백석동, 불당동으로, 천안시 부성동이 부성1동, 부성2동으로 각각 분동되어 본도의 행정구역은 8시7군 24읍 137면 46동으로 구성되어 오늘에 이르고 있다.

1. History of Chungcheongnam-Do

Chungcheongnam-Do (province) belonged to the northern part of the Mahan State in the Three Han Period. It is presumed that the Worljikuk Kingdom, the cultural and political center of the Mahan State, was also located in this Province.

During the Three Kingdom Period, the Mahan State was conquered by and annexed into the BaekJe Kingdom. The capital of the kingdom was moved to Woongjin (current Gongju) from Hanseong (current Seoul) in the 2nd year of King Munju (A.D.475), and to Sabi (current Buyeo) in the 16th year of King Sung (A.D.538). The splendorous Baekje culture had flourished for 122 years until the Kingdom was destroyed by the combined forces of Silla and Dang (Chinese dynasty - A.D.618 to 907) in the 20th year of King Eoija (A.D.660).

In this Province, Wungjin Todokpu was established in the 7th year of King Muyeol (A.D.660), which was renamed Soburiju (or Sabiju) in the 11th year of King Munmu, Wungcheonju in the 6th year of King Sinmun (A.D.686), and Wungju in the 16th year of King Gyeongdeok (A.D.757).

When the late Baekje and the late Koguryeo were separated from the United Silla, this Province was within the domain of the late Baekje founded by Gyeonwhon. The Province was then included in Gongjumok when King Seongjong assumed 12 Mok System in the 2nd year of his reign (A.D.983). In A.D 995, or the 14th year of King Seongjong, the administrative system was reorganized into the 10 Province System according to which this Province belonged to Hanam-do, composed of major prefectures such as Wung-ju (current Gongju) and Wun-ju (current Hongseong). The three provinces of Kwannae, Chungwon, and Hanam were combined into Yangkwangchungcheongju-do (province) in 1106, which was then divided into Yangkwangju-do and Chungcheongju-do in the first year of King Myeongjong (A.D.1171). The Chungcheongju-do was renamed Yangkwang-do in 1314 and Chungcheong-do in the 5th year of King Gongmin (A.D.1356). However the area of the Yangkwangju-do was also called Yangkwang-do or Chungcheong-do at the last period of Koryeo Dynasty.

In the 4th year of the reign of King Taejo in early Choseon Dynasty, or A.D. 1396, the Yangkwang-do was disunited into Gyeonggi-do and Chungcheong-do.

Chungcheong-do was renamed Chunghong-do in the 11th year of Lord Yeonsan (A.D.1505) and the capital of the province was transferred to Gongju from Chungju.

Later Chungcheong-do was renamed as Gongcheong-do, Chungcheong -do, Konghong-do, Chunghong-do, and Kongchung-do and in the 34th year of King Suncho (A.D.1834) it was renamed Chungcheong-do.

On August 4, 1896, or the 33rd year of King Kojong's reign, the previous 8 Province System was changed into the 13 Province System according to the Royal Decree No. 36, and Chungcheongdo was divided into Chungcheongnam-do (Southern Chungcheong Province) and Chungcheongbuk-do (Northern Chungcheong Province). Then Chungcheongnam-do was composed of 37 Guns.

1. History of Chungcheongnam-Do

The Office of Provincial Government was located in Gongju, but later, on October 11, 1932, it was moved to Daejeon-eup (town), which was promoted to Daejeon-bu and the remaining areas in Daejeon-gun (county) were reorganized and renamed as Daedeok-gun in 1935.

In 1963 as a result of the reorganization of the administrative structure, the Whangwha-myeon, Iksan-gun, Jeollabuk-do and a part of Kujagok-myeon, Nonsan-gun were integrated into Yeonmu-eup, and Daecheon-myeon, Boryeong-gun and Dangjin-myeon, Dangjin-gun were promoted to eup status. In the same year Cheonan-eup and Whanseong-myeon of Cheonan-gun were united into Cheonan-si and the rest remained as Cheonan-gun, and Geumsan-gun, Jellabuk-do was annexed into Chungcheongnam-do.

In 1986 Gongju-eup, Gongju-gun; Daecheon-eup, Boryeong-gun; and Onyang-eup, Asan-gun were promoted to the status of Si, or city, and in 1989 Daejeon-si and Daedeok-gun were integrated and promoted to Jik Hal Si (Directly Controlled City) by Law No. 4049 (proclaimed on Dec. 3, 1988). The remaining Namseon-ri, Jinjam-myeon of the abolished Daedeok-gun were incorporated into Duma-myeon, Nonsan-gun.

By Law No. 4050 (proclaimed on Dec. 31, 1988) Seosan-eup in Seosan-gun was promoted to the status of Si (city), and Taean-eup, Anmyeon-eup, Gonam-myeon, Nam-myeon, Gunhung-myeon, Soweon-myeon, Weonbuk-myeon, and Yiweon-myeon were integrated into Taean-gun.

In 1995 an extensive reorganisation of the administrative structure was carried out just before the local autonomy system was implemented, and urban-rural complex cities were established by integrating Gongju-gun and Gongju-city to 'Gongju-city', Daecheon-city and Boryeong-gun 'Boryeong-city', Onyang-city and Asan-gun 'Asan-city', and Seosan-city and Seosan-gun Seosan-city'. On March 1st, 1996, Nonsan-gun was upgraded to Nonsan-city.

And, by Law No. 6929 on July 18th 2003, Gyeryong branch office was promoted to Gyeryong-si.

Also, the installation of general gu (Dongnam-gu, Seobuk-gu) in Cheonan-si was approved in December, 2007 and the office was opened in July, 2008. Baebang-myeon, Asan-si and Songak-myeon, Dangjin-gun were promoted to Eup by meeting the requirements of both population growth and legal qualifications in May, 2009 and January, 2010 respectively, thereby Chungcheongnam-do is composed of 7 Sis, 9 Guns, 24 Eups, 147 Myeons, and 41 Dongs to date.

Rapid population growth contributed to raise Dangjin-gun (county) to the status of a city, Dangjin-si(Jan.1, 2012) and the whole area of Yeongi-gun and 21 villages(ri) of Janggi-myeon, Uidang-myeon, Banpo-myeon were incorporated into Sejong Special Autonomous City as of July 1, 2012. On Oct. 14, 2013, Baekseok-dong in Cheonan-si was divided into Baekseok-dong and Buldang-dong and Buseong-dong into Buseong 1-dong and Buseong 2-dong, resulted in 8 cities(si), 7 counties(gun), 24 towns(eup), 137 townships(myeon) and 46 neighborhoods(dong) as of today.